

**EASTLAKE CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JANUARY 13, 2009**

The Regular Meeting of the Eastlake City Council was held at Eastlake City Hall, 35150 Lakeshore Boulevard. The Meeting was called to order by Council President Mr. Elshaw at approximately 7:30 p.m.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. D'Ambrosio.

ATTENDEES

Members of Council in attendance were Mr. D'Ambrosio, Ms. Vaughn, Mr. Knuchel, Mr. Zontini, Mr. Morley and Council President Mr. Elshaw. Mr. Lajeunesse was absent and excused, Also attending was Council Clerk Mrs. Cendroski.

Those attending from the Administration were Mayor Andrzejewski, Finance Director Mr. Condron, Law Director Mr. Klammer, Service Director Mr. Semik, CBO Mr. Stigalt, City Engineer Mr. Guard, Police Chief Ruth and Fire Chief Whittington.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2008

MOTION: Mr. D'Ambrosio moved to approve the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of December 16, 2008. Ms. Vaughn seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas: Mr. D'Ambrosio, Mr. Morley, Ms. Vaughn, Mr. Lajeunesse,
Mr. Knuchel, Mr. Elshaw

Abstain: Mr. Zontini

Motion carried. The minutes were approved.

COUNCIL PRESIDENT'S REPORT – Mr. Elshaw

Mr. Elshaw: I want to welcome everyone back from the holidays – Happy New Year – it is time to get back to business and we will start tonight. We did have a couple of meetings the other night although I was not able to attend – but, I am sure we will have many more.

Meetings Scheduled

Mr. Elshaw: A Council-as-a-Whole Committee Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 27, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. The Regular Council Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 27, 2009 at 7:30 p.m.

An Economic & Community Development Council meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 21, 2009 at 6:30 p.m.

COMMUNICATIONS & PETITIONS

Conditional Use Permit Renewal recommendations were received from the Administration for The Captains Club, 34820 Vine Street, Eastlake, North & South Shoppe, 560 East 337th Street, Eastlake, SJM Painting, 34047 Iris Lane, Eastlake and Karen's Kurls, 1427 East 332nd Street, Eastlake. These were referred to Planning Committee.

Communications were received from the Administration proposing amendments to City Ordinance Chapter 1321 “The Residential Code of Ohio for One, Two and Three-Family Dwellings,” and City Ordinance Chapter 1387 “Residential Building and Property Maintenance Code.” These were referred to Ordinance Committee.

A communication was received from the Administration proposing an amendment to City Codified Ordinances Part Nine “Streets, Utilities and Public Services Code.” This was referred to the Storm Water Management Committee.

A request was received from the Administration to advertise for bids for primary and backup landscapers. This was referred to Service/Utilities Committee.

A liquor license transfer request was received for 345th Street Bar & Grille, LLC & Patio, 34471 Vine Street to West, Inc. & Patio, 34471 Vine Street, Eastlake. This was referred to Planning Committee.

A communication was received from the Council Clerk regarding the fee the City charges for copies. Mr. Elshaw requested that the Administration have this reviewed by Records Commission and policy submitted with recommendations.

A communication was received from the Administration regarding the Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council (NOPEC). Mr. Elshaw explained that Mayor Andrzejewski advised this item was no longer necessary, as it was forwarded to Council too late.

A request was received from the Administration to purchase vehicles under State Bid for the Police Department. This was referred to Finance Committee.

A request was received from Finance Director Condron to enter into a Lease Agreement, under State Bid, for copiers for the City Departments. This was referred to Finance Committee.

A communication was received from the Administration regarding an Amendment to the Lease Agreement between the City of Eastlake and the Lake County Captains. This was referred to Finance Committee.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS

PLANNING COMMITTEE – Mr. D’Ambrosio

Mr. D’Ambrosio: The Planning Committee met on January 6, 2009 at 6:11 p.m. Present from the Committee were myself, Mr. Zontini and Mr. Knuchel. Members from Council in attendance were Mr. Lajeunesse, Ms. Vaughn and Mr. Morley. Council President Mr. Elshaw was absent and excused. In attendance from the Administration were Mayor Andrzejewski, CBO Stigalt, Fire Chief Whittington and Police Chief Ruth.

There were five Conditional Use Permit Renewals on the agenda that evening and all were moved forward – I will be making a motion on those as well as the items for which we had Public Hearings this evening.

Mr. D'Ambrosio made the following Motions:

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

MOTION: I hereby move to deny the Conditional Use Permit request for John Harper, dba Lakeshore Firearms, 35786 Roberts Road, Eastlake. Mr. Knuchel seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas: Mr. D'Ambrosio, Mr. Knuchel, Ms. Vaughn, Mr. Zontini, Mr. Elshaw
Nays: Mr. Morley

Motion carried. The Conditional Use Permit for John Harper, dba Lakeshore Firearms, 35786 Roberts Road, Eastlake is denied.

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT RENEWALS:

MOTION: I hereby move to approve the Conditional Use Permit Renewals for:

K-Mart #4263, 33752 Vine Street, Eastlake

Thru Mart, Inc., Boris Grinberg, Agent, 35652 Vine Street, Eastlake

JEC Properties, LLC dba Chick's Auto, Joe Chick, Agent, 1422 East 361st Street, Eastlake

Eastlake VFW Post #3863, 33641 Vine Street, Eastlake

Dairy Mart #4263, 36170 Lakeshore Blvd., Eastlake

Mr. Zontini seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

Motion carried. The Conditional Use Permit Renewal requests for K-Mart #4263, Thru Mart, Inc., JEC Properties, LLC dba Chick's Auto, Eastlake VFW Post #3863 and Dairy Mart #5263 are approved.

Additional Comments

Mr. D'Ambrosio: This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

There were no questions of Mr. D'Ambrosio.

FINANCE COMMITTEE – Mr. Knuchel

Mr. Knuchel: The Finance Committee has not met since the last regularly scheduled Council meeting, therefore, I have no formal report. I am in receipt of a response to my questions to Mr. Semik concerning a mainline camera purchase and a camera and grouting – is that the same piece of equipment, Mr. Mayor?

Mayor Andrzejewski: Yes. I will confirm that tomorrow but yes, it is the same.

Mr. Knuchel: I just wanted to make sure. That was my impression. We will be discussing that at our Committee meeting as well as looking at affirming or denying the bids that went out.

Mayor Andrzejewski: We are asking to purchase the equipment rather than contract it out.

Mr. Knuchel: There are two issues –one is what we do with the bids – they are both entwined. This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

There were no questions of Mr. Knuchel.

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE - Ms. Vaughn

Ms. Vaughn: The Ordinance Committee met on Tuesday, January 5, 2008 at 6:15 p.m. with myself, Mr. Morley and Mr. D'Ambrosio present from the Committee. Also in attendance from Council were Mr. Zontini, Mr. Lajeunesse and Mr. Knuchel. Council President Mr. Elshaw was absent and excused. In attendance from the Administration were Mayor Andrzejewski, Law Director Mr. Klammer, Fire Chief Whittington and CBO Stigalt. The Committee reviewed legislation discussed in Council-as-a-Whole Committee – 1309.04(b), 1145.13, 1361, and 132.14. 1163 “Zoning Board of Appeals” was held in Committee for further review. I will not be scheduling a meeting at this time.

A Block Watch is scheduled for tomorrow night at 7:00 p.m. at the PAL Center.

I have received a request from a fellow Council person to ask that Council be polled on re-opening the issue of the Mayor/Safety Director. It was previously reviewed by the Committee and was referred out with no action. I would like to request Chapter 155 be referred into my Committee for review of some proposed changes.

This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

Mr. Elshaw: The request to poll Council – I believe the Mayor/Safety Director topic was discussed extensively at two Ordinance Committee meetings and I know the final result was a vote against moving it forward. I would like to hear from the Ordinance Committee members. I know you, Ms. Vaughn, are probably for revisiting it. Mr. D'Ambrosio?

Mr. D'Ambrosio: I would like to ask Mr. Klammer is there is any way we violated the ordinance or the Charter in any way that you feel we should review this again?

Mr. Klammer: I shared by opinion in Committee and later in writing. I have not changed my mind – there is no violation.

Mr. D'Ambrosio: Then I am good with Mr. Klammer's opinion. I am not interested in looking at this again.

Mr. Morley: Madame Chairman, I believe my comments at both the last couple of Ordinance Committee meetings speak for themselves. The residents can read the minutes to see what I said – I said it twice and I hold by my vote to not move it forward.

Mr. Elshaw: You have the same result – your Committee is not interested in revisiting this at this time. I don't see the point of polling the rest of Council at this point.

Ms. Vaughn: My request from the Council person was request was to poll the entire Council.

Mr. Elshaw: That is correct – and I don't see the point of that, Ms. Vaughn.

As to the 155 referral – you had mentioned there were changes the Mayor was working on – if you could forward them over to Council they can be referred into Committee. And, if you have any suggested changes forward them and they will be referred into Committee.

Ms. Vaughn: This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

There were no further questions of Ms. Vaughn.

SERVICE/UTILITIES COMMITTEE – Mr. Zontini

Mr. Zontini: I have no formal report but would like to thank everybody – some members of the audience and members of Council for their cards and e-mails and phone calls during my period of recuperation – it was very much appreciated.

I would like to thank Ms. Vaughn for revisiting the issue on 155 – it is my opinion that it is very clear that the research and facts that I have gathered very clearly in my opinion indicates that we are in violation of the Charter which then results in us acting in noncompliance with State statute and our ordinances with regard to that issue. I think all of you are aware that as of today Senator Clinton was being confirmed by Congress. Each level of government has a confirmation process. Our Charter very clearly states that we have a confirmation process and the reason for that is very clear. It is a matter of the checks and balances being enforced. We are the last defense for the residents to make sure that whoever is appointed to those positions it is not merely a political appointee but a qualified appointee. Certainly, when Mr. Slocum quit – and I am not denigrating any profession – every job has different qualifications and different experiences – if a Mayor had come to us and proposed Mary the manicurist to be our Finance Director we would not have confirmed her because she probably had no bookkeeping or accounting skills. It is the same thing with the Safety Director – we would not have confirmed Joe the Plumber if Joe the Plumber had no medical CPR. The purpose for the confirmation clause in our Charter is very clear. If we pass an ordinance today that says the Mayor is also Safety Director let us not forget this is an election year. Come January we have three Council people who may be new. We also have a Mayor who may be new. So, if we appoint through ordinance Mr. Andrzejewski, as Safety Director today – come January 1st – maybe Joe the Plumber is now your Mayor. There is no confirmation process because it has been rule that the ordinance says he is now Safety Director as well. It totally skirts and contravenes the purposes of the Charter and the confirmation clause. It tears at the very fabric of democracy that says we have to have checks and balances. So, we are in violation of that because that was never done. Being in violation of our own Charter also puts us in violation of State law which requires we must have a Safety Director. That is my opinion – I am sorry people disagree. I thank you Ms. Vaughn for raising the issue again. I just think as elected officials we should probably try to do the right thing.

This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

Mr. Elshaw: Again, this was discussed at length within two Ordinance Committee meetings. We did get a verbal opinion at the meeting from our Law Director that is contrary to Mr. Zontini – and also a written opinion to that affect which is also contrary to that opinion. The point that was brought up was the split of the Mayor and Safety Director – it seems to be

related to the appointment but it is also a separate issue. I will allow Mr. Klammer to make one comment if he wishes, if not we will move on.

Mr. Klammer: There was a spirited debate – you folks spent a lot of time discussing this issue. To the extent that there was an implication that you were bad officials – I know that was not the intention but it certainly comes across that way. Everybody certainly spent a lot of time and considered how it in the fabric of the law. I don't believe there was any wrongdoing. The ordinance indicated Mayor/Safety Director – that would indicated that Mayor Andrzejewski is the Safety Director. That is why I reached those conclusions. To the extent that any of us had anything other than the best interests of the residents of the City in our hearts – I want to make clear that certainly is so.

There were no questions of Mr. Zontini.

SAFETY COMMITTEE – Mr. Morley

Mr. Morley: The Safety Committee has not met since our last regularly scheduled Council meeting. The only thing we have pending is Nestor – once we get the legislation for that we will schedule a meeting. This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

Mrs. Cendroski: Mr. Klammer, the last communication we had was that you had forwarded the legislation to the attorney's at Nestor for review.

Mr. Klammer: I will check into that.

There were no questions of Mr. Morley.

RECREATION COMMITTEE – Mr. Lajeunesse

Mr. Lajeunesse was absent and excused.

RECOGNITION OF THE PUBLIC

Mr. Elshaw recognized the public input at this time; he reminded the speakers that there is a 3-minute limit for their comments; all comments are to be directed to the Chair and not include any personalities or individuals.

Dave Wayner, 883 Audrey Court, Eastlake

Mr. Wayner: Two items - Safety Director – has he taken any courses to be qualified as a Safety Director. Number two – the lights on Vine Street need help – the other day there was a lady sitting in a car taking a survey.

Mayor Andrzejewski: The City does not have anyone looking at the signals on Vine Street or anyone else.

Mr. Wayner: It may have been someone on their own.

Mr. Elshaw: As far as the courses – what courses have you taken?

Mayor Andrzejewski: Mr. Elshaw, you know the answer to that.

Mr. Elshaw: That did come up during our discussion.

Mayor Andrzejewski: The last three years and last year I attended with Mr. Condran an Ohio Public Employee Labor Relations Board conference and we talk about various issues concerning police and fire as well as other human resource issues. You asked me what courses I took in relation to that – those are very good seminars.

Mr. Elshaw: And, it was discussed during the Ordinance Meeting when we discussed the Safety Director position held by the Mayor that – although it may not be required – courses should be taken. I think Mr. D’Ambrosio mentioned it and I support it – it should probably be a requirement.

There was no one else who wished to speak.

LEGISLATION PROPOSED - First number will be 2009-001

Requested by: Administration
Sponsored by: Mr. D’Ambrosio

ORDINANCE NO: 01-13-(01)

An Ordinance amending the Conditional Use Permit issued to Urban Cornacchione, Jr., Agent for USA Management and Upscale Entertainment, Inc., dba Scorchers and Dennis Slotta, President of Upscale Entertainment, Inc., dba Scorchers, 35534 Vine Street, Eastlake, Ohio, and declaring an emergency.

MOTION: Mr. D’Ambrosio moved to suspend the rules requiring separate readings and reading in full. Mr. Knuchel seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

MOTION: Mr. D’Ambrosio moved to adopt. Mr. Knuchel seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

Motion carried. Legislation is adopted as Ordinance No. 2009-001.

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT RENEWAL:

MOTION: I hereby move to approve the Conditional Use Permit Renewal request for Armpit East Limited Partnership and Dennis Slotta, President of Upscale Entertainment, Inc., dba Scorchers, 35534 Vine Street, Eastlake 44095. Mr. Zontini seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yes unanimous.

Motion carried. The Conditional Use Permit Renewal for Scorchers is approved.

– – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

Requested by: CBO Stigalt
Sponsored by: Ms. Vaughn

ORDINANCE NO.: 01-13-(02)

An Ordinance amending Section 1309.04, "Issuance of Certificate; Insurance," of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Eastlake, specifically subsection 1309.04(b), and declaring an emergency.

MOTION: Ms. Vaughn moved to suspend the rules requiring separate readings and reading in full. Mr. Morley seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

MOTION: Ms. Vaughn moved to adopt. Mr. Morley seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

Motion carried. Legislation is adopted as Ordinance No. 2009-002.

- - - - -

Requested by: CBO Mr. Stigalt
Sponsored by: Ms. Vaughn

ORDINANCE NO.: 01-13-(03)
An Ordinance amending Section 1145.13
“Accessory Buildings and Uses: Garages and
Parking Facilities,” of the Codified Ordinances
of the City of Eastlake, specifically subsection
1145.13(a), and declaring an emergency.

MOTION: Ms. Vaughn moved to suspend the rules requiring separate readings and reading in full. Mr. Morley seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

MOTION: Ms. Vaughn moved to adopt. Mr. Morley seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

Motion carried. Legislation is adopted as Ordinance No. 2009-003.

- - - - -

Requested by: CBO Stigalt
Sponsored by: Ms. Vaughn

ORDINANCE NO: 01-13-(04)
An Ordinance amending City Ordinance
Chapter 1361 “Fences,” and declaring an
emergency.

MOTION: Ms. Vaughn moved to suspend the rules requiring separate readings and reading in full. Mr. Morley seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

MOTION: Ms. Vaughn moved to adopt. Mr. Morley seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

Motion carried. Legislation is adopted as Ordinance No. 2009-004.

- - - - -

Requested by: Administration
Sponsored by: Ms. Vaughn

ORDINANCE NO.: 01-13-(05)

An Ordinance amending Section 132.14 “Fees for Rescue Calls,” of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Eastlake, and declaring an emergency.

MOTION: Ms. Vaughn moved to suspend the rules requiring separate readings and reading in full. Mr. Morley seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

MOTION: Mr. Vaughn moved to adopt. Mr. Morley seconded.

ROLL CALL: Yeas unanimous.

Motion carried. Legislation is adopted as Ordinance No. 2009-005.

- - - - -

LEGISLATION PENDING

There was no Legislation Pending.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no Unfinished Business.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no New Business.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS:

MAYOR/SAFETY DIRECTOR – Ted Andrzejewski

Mayor Andrzejewski: It has been a quiet couple of weeks at the beginning of the year. I am sure everyone has seen the results of the two year State Audit for 2006 and 2007. We all should be very pleased – thanks to our Finance Director Mr. Condron and Council by working together everything came out well. I think the residents can see the State Auditor has confidence about the City doing well and that there were no material findings. That is from the people who are assigned to make sure that cities are running properly and their finances are proper. We all should be proud of the fact that the City is in much better shape financially and more importantly we are using the funds people give us wisely and for the appropriate reasons. This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

Mr. Elshaw: Regarding the Audit – just to make it clear and maybe it was not very clear in the newspapers. It was an excellent article and is something we should be proud of – however, it is a compliance Audit. That means the City is in compliance with the law and the standards that are put forward by the State Auditor. It does not mean we are not facing the same economic difficulties that other cities are facing. We are facing that. It just means that we don’t have any negative balances – we are not allowed to do that – otherwise we would be in fiscal emergency again and we do not want that. We need to thank the employees and the Directors for keeping within budget – it has been a tough couple of years. We do want to thank them and thank you to the Mayor for thanking everyone else.

There were no questions of Mayor Andrzejewski.

LAW DIRECTOR – Randy Klammer

Mr. Klammer: I have been working with the Building Department on some issues. Other than that I am open for questions.

There were no questions of Mr. Klammer.

FINANCE DIRECTOR – Brian Condron

Mr. Condron: We are working on closing out our Fiscal Year 2008. We will have the December report done and it should be in your packets this week. We discussed having the State Auditor assist us with our annual report – we actually have a person assigned to help us. We should have the budget information available by around February 10th. This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

There were no questions of Mr. Condron.

TAX ADMINISTRATOR – Angela Keneven-Zanella

Mrs. Keneven-Zanella was absent and excused.

SERVICE DIRECTOR – Mike Semik

Mr. Semik was absent and excused.

CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL – John Stigalt

Mr. Stigalt: It is the beginning of the year and we are trying to get some things in order. *Comments could not be understood.* This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

Mr. Morley: I had contacted you on the property on East 343rd - please keep an eye on 1277 East 343rd Street. I have received more emails about that residence being a junk yard. If we have to proceed and address this legally we need to do so. This is a consistent problem. We have to keep up on this and if we have to pursue it legally we have to – it has been going on for over a year. I would appreciate it if we can follow up on that.

Mr. Klammer: Mr. Stigalt, please bring the information to the next Directors' meeting and we will review it.

Mr. Stigalt: Some of the issues – like parking cars on the street – there is not much we can do about it – it is a police issue. We will do what we can.

Mr. Morley: I understand – when I drove by there were three engines on the grass – it was not in any order – it was all over. If that was my neighbor I would not be very happy. Please follow up on that.

Mr. Elshaw: I think in the past it was discussed that if this would relapse – a lot of chances were given and last year it looked like the property had been cleaned up and everything was going good. If it has relapsed – I agree with Mr. Morley – we should take some type of legal action at this point.

There were no further questions of Mr. Stigalt.

CITY ENGINEER – Tom Gwydir

Mr. Gwydir: I have been working on various communications with the Administration and working with Mr. Stigalt on some ordinance language changes. We are also working on the South Riverview project. We are working with the ORDC – Ohio Rail Development Commission – to try to get something done at the crossing on Roberts Road. This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

Mr. Elshaw: Thanks for the emails on the Roberts Road railroad crossing – the asphalt was breaking up pretty bad - it was dangerous and someone patched it. The first response was for us to put up signs that it was under repair – I am glad you did something – my question is when will we get that resolved?

Mr. Gwydir: CSK did the work on the signals but did not repair the road as they were supposed to do. We are actually well past Phase 2.

Mr. Elshaw: All your efforts are greatly appreciated. Can we get any date out of them as to when they will be working on this? It has been several years.

Mr. Gwydir: The issue with the gates took 1 ½ years – it also has an effect on the Roberts Road contracts which remain open – if I can get CSX to do the crossing work I can credit those funds back on the open contracts so Mr. Condron can close his books and maybe save some money for Eastlake.

Mayor Andrzejewski: The most difficult and arrogant company I have ever worked with since I have been Mayor is CSX. We have a problem with the noise on the railroad tracks when delivering coal and we have this problem. We get zero cooperation. Mr. Gwydir and I have pushed. I believe we are finally getting to a conclusion. The straw that broke the camel's back was when we got the letter saying we were going to be responsible if anything happens on the intersection – so put up signs. They thought they would send us a letter saying we were responsible and they would wipe their hands of it. This thing goes all the way back to Mr. Guard. They are extremely difficult to work with.

Mr. Elshaw: Do we need to get our Congressman involved?

Mayor Andrzejewski: Every time we get our Congressman involved they cry Homeland Security. We can supersede your ordinances by saying we fall under Homeland Security in getting coal to the power plant and we can do it anytime we want. We will keep working on it.

Mr. Gwydir: I am trying to push ORDC to get CSK to provide schedule for completion – hopefully this spring – if my actions go unrewarded I will talk to Mr. Klammer to try to push this matter along.

Mr. Elshaw: Unfortunately – it is at that point.

There were no further questions of Mr. Gwydir.

POLICE CHIEF – John Ruth

Chief Ruth: Our Christmas program was very successful – we helped about 58 families to have a happier Christmas for their children. We were also able to distribute food baskets. The left over toys were donated to Rainbow Babies & Children’s hospital. Our 911 system is up and running as of January 8th – there is one more component we are installing. This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

FIRE CHIEF – Ted Whittington

Chief Whittington: We had a very busy fire month in December – we had about 5 structural fires with one resulting in a fatality. I have provided Council and the Mayor with a copy of the report. We are continuing to remind the community about the importance of smoke detectors and changing the batteries. The Fire Department has a smoke detector program – we will offer and install a free smoke detector. Also, in working with the Fire Marshall we are trying to remind people that extension cords should not be a permanent fixture in homes – they should be a short time use. This concludes my report and I am open for questions.

There were no questions of Chief Whittington.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:26 p.m.

DENNIS MORLEY, COUNCIL VICE PRESIDENT

APPROVED: _____

ATTEST: _____
DEBORAH A. CENDROSKI, CMC
CLERK OF COUNCIL

